ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2008
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stednan, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Bill W el echowski

Senat or Thomas WAgoner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 253
"An Act relating to the appointnment of nenbers of the Board of
Gane; and providing for an effective date.™

MOVED SB 253 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 165
"An Act relating to providing field acconmodations for big gane
hunters. "

MOVED HB 165 OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 176

"An Act relating to active gane managenent and to the airborne

or sanme day airborne taking of certain game aninmals; making

conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."
MOVED CSSB 176( RES) OUT OF COMWM TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 253

SHORT TI TLE: BOARD OF GAME
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) HUGG NS

01/ 28/ 08 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 08 (S) RES

02/ 16/ 08 (S) RES AT 11: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 16/ 08 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 18, 2008



02/ 18/ 08 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HB 165
SHORT TITLE: BI G GAVE GUI DES AND TRANSPORTERS
SPONSOR('S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) LEDOUX

02/ 28/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 28/ 07 (H) RES

03/ 12/ 07 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 12/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 12/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 19/ 07 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 19/ 07 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 19/ 07 (H M NUTE( RES)

03/ 21/ 07 (H RES RPT 8DP 1NR

03/ 21/ 07 (H DP: WLSON, ROSES, GUTTENBERG EDGVON,
KOHRI NG SEATON, GATTO, JOHNSON

03/ 21/ 07 (H NR  KAWASAKI

05/ 01/ 07 (H RETURNED TO RLS COW TTEE

05/ 05/ 07 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

05/ 05/ 07 (H VERSI ON: HB 165

05/ 07/ 07 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

05/ 07/ 07 (S) RES, JUD

05/ 09/ 07 (S) RES AT 4: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

05/ 09/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

05/ 09/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 18/ 08 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 176

SHORT TI TLE: ACTI VE GAME MANAGEMENT/ Al RBORNE SHOOTI NG
SPONSOR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

05/ 10/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
05/ 10/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN
02/ 18/ 08 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

JODIE SIMPSQN, Staff to Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Al aska State Legislature

State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 253 on behalf of Senator
Huggi ns, sponsor.

JI' M MARCOTTE, Director
Boar ds Support Section

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 2- February 18, 2008



Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 253 and answered
guesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LeDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 165.

SUZANNE HANCOCK, Staff to Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Al aska State Legislature

State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 165.

Rl CK METZGER
Kodi ak, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 165.

JI M PETERSON
Kodi ak, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HB 165.

ROBERT FI THI AN, Executive Director

Al aska Prof essional Hunters Association
Lower Tonsina, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HB 165.

PAUL JOHNSON, Chair
Big Ganme Conmercial Services Board
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on HB 165.

DOUG LARSON, Director

Division of WIldlife Conservation

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane

Juneau AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present for questions on SB 176.

KEVI N SAXBY, Senior Assistant Attorney General
Departnent of Law

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on SB 176.

WADE WLLIS, representing hinself
Anchor age AK

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 18, 2008



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 176.

VI C VANBALLENBERGHE, W I dlife Bi ol ogi st
Anchor age AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 176.

PAUL JOSLIN, representing hinself
Anchor age AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Strongly opposed SB 176.

VAL GLOOSCHECNKO, representing herself
Anchor age AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 176.

JERRY McCUTCHEQN, representing hinself
Anchor age AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 176.

JOHN TOPPENBERG

Al aska WIildlife Aliance

Sol dot na AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 176.

JOEL BENNETT, representing hinself
Juneau AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed SB 176.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGGA NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 3:34:03 PM Present at the call
to order were Senators \Wagoner, McGui r e, G een, St evens,
St edman, and Chair Huggi ns.

SB 253- MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GAME

3:34:10 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS announced the consideration of SB 253. As the
sponsor, he asked Jodie Sinpson to present the bill.

JODIE SIMPSON, staff to Senator Charlie Huggins, explained that
the statutory change brings the ternms for the Board of Gane
nmenbers in line with those of the Board of Fisheries. This wll
prevent problens arising from the short tinmeframe for newy
appoi nted nenbers to prepare for the large regulatory board
nmeeting held in early March every year. It also will reduce
confusion anmong the public as to which board nenbers to contact

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 18, 2008



regardi ng issues. Noting packets included a letter from the
board chair requesting the changes, she said M. Mrcotte of the
Boards Support Section would testify and answer questions.

3:35:56 PM

JIM  MARCOTTE, Director, Boar ds Support Section, Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&GS), said ADF&G supports SB 253

He explained that the short tine between when appointnents
typically are mde in February - early in the |legislative
session - and the mmjor board neeting that wusually occurs in
early March causes admnistrative problens. It is uncertain
whet her existing nenbers will be reappointed and thus will have
to prepare for that March neeting, and new appointees have
little time, often just days, to prepare.

MR. MARCOTTE reported that a simlar switch for the Board of
Fi sheries happened in 1996 and has worked well. It has given
plenty of tinme for legislative review. Board nenbers are seated
starting July 1 and then are ready for the neeting cycle in
fall, winter, and spring. It allows for new nenber orientation
coordination with Departnent of Law staff, and so forth

MR. MARCOTTE explained that currently, wth Board of Gane
appointnments namde prior to the full legislative confirmation
process, nenbers nmay be |ooking over their shoulders to see how
sonme actions play out politically. It would be better to have
fully seated nenbers as they take action during the March
meet i ng. He said this change is admnistrative in nature, but
recogni zes the inportant role that the board has.

MR. MARCOTTE i ndicated packets also included the follow ng: a
chart of the transition period that allows current nenbers to
have terns which expire March 1, while terns for new appointees
expire June 30; the current statute; a list of current Board of
Gane nenbers; a summary of the board's two-year cycle, since it
deals with different geographic areas of the state on a rotating
basis; and an historical |list of neeting dates and nenbers.

3:39:59 PM
CHAIR HUGGE NS asked why it took 12 years to do this. He al so
requested details on the unexpired terns.

MR. MARCOITE replied that discussions of this issue have gone on
for a couple of years and it was a matter of focus. As for
unexpired ternms, if a nmenber | eaves because of health or another
reason, the replacenment would continue only for the duration of

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 18, 2008



the original term Thus the expiration of the terms would stay
i ntact.

CHAI R HUGGE NS nentioned failure to be confirned.
MR. MARCOTTE agreed that has happened in the past.
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked whether that is a change.

MR. MARCOITE answered no. |In further response, he said he
couldn't think of any opposition to the bill.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if it was M. Marcotte's brainchild.

MR. MARCOTTE responded that it was in collaboration with Kristy
Ti bbl es, the Board of Gane, and others in the departnent.

SENATOR STEVENS said it nmakes perfect sense to him He asked
what problens have arisen because nenbers attend a neeting in
March wi thout |egislative confirmation.

MR. MARCOTTE replied it's a twofold problem First, the public
perception is that the newly appointed nenber, not yet
confirmed, doesn't have the full support of two branches of the
government; it wundermnes that person's status as an acting
board nmenber. Second, if the menber acts on proposals in Mrch
and is subject to confirmation following that, there is undue
scrutiny of specific details or a single vote; that happened
recently. It would be nore appropriate to |look at soneone's
overall ability to serve, rather than focusing on a single issue
for which the nenber acted in good faith at the tine.

CHAI R HUGA NS asked whet her anyone el se wished to testify; there
was no response.

3:44: 04 PM
SENATOR STEDVMAN noved to report SB 253 from conmittee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations and attached fiscal note(s). There

bei ng no objection, SB 253 was noved out of the Senate Resources
St andi ng Comm ttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from 3:44:17 PMuntil 3:47:26 PM

HB 165- Bl G GAVE GUI DES AND TRANSPORTERS

CHAI R HUGE NS announced the consi derati on of HB 165.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 18, 2008



3:47: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LeDOUX, Alaska State Legislature
sponsor of HB 165, rem nded nenbers that it was heard |ast year
and held in order to give the Departnment of Law (DOL) and
Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) an opportunity to weigh in
She reported that DOL said the bill doesn't raise any issues for
that departnent, and although DPS was notified of this hearing,
t here was no response; she surm sed no news i s good news.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX recapped that in 1996 legislation was
passed to define big game hunters, outfitters, and transporters
and to provi de regul ati ons for | i censi ng and ot her
consi derations. However, it had no provision for a person who
sinply wants to rent a cabin to people who nmay or nmay not be
hunti ng.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX pointed out that many rural Al askans have
cabins that are enpty for part of the year and this bill allows
them to rent their cabins wthout falling into any of the
regul ations found in the 1996 statute. Rural residents have few
econonmi ¢ opportunities, and this provides one. She added t hat
menbers of the Big Ganme Commercial Services Board have worked
with her office to craft a bill that protects their interests
while allowing others to do business. She deferred to Suzanne
Hancock, who'd worked on the bill with the constituent whose e-
mai | brought this issue to their attention.

3:49: 55 PM

SUZANNE HANCOCK, Staff to Representative LeDoux, noted the
aforenmentioned constituent was on teleconference. She said
others including outdoor groups have weighed in on behalf of
i ndividuals who wish to sinply rent out a cabin wthout being
present or providing acconmodations or acting as an outfitter or
gui de.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked if anyone opposed this bill

M5. HANCOCK replied this only takes care of cabins on private
| and and state and federal cabins on state and federal |and; the
one individual she heard from wanted the bill to be expanded to
cover private cabins on |eased | and. The main reason that was
deci ded against is because several groups such as the Big Gane
Commerci al Services Board renenbered that is what led to this
law in the first place. In the 1980s sone people falsely clained
to be outfitters and it sonetinmes involved |eased property.
Addi ng | eased | and woul d nmuddy a sinple situation.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 18, 2008



SENATOR WAGONER asked if the person who was renting out the
cabins was a transporter or guide.

MS. HANCOCK answer ed no.

SENATOR WAGONER went on to ask if he had a business |icense and
hi s business was renting cabins or hotel roons, what current |aw
prevents himfromrenting that cabin or hotel roomto a hunter.

M5. HANCOCK offered to find out, saying it mght take a m nute.

CHAI R HUGA NS asked how renting out a cabin differs fromrenting
out a notel room

M5. HANCOCK responded that M. Metzger hadn't thought there was
anything wong wth renting his cabin until the troopers showed
up and said he wasn't supposed to do that.

3:53:40 PM

RI CK METZGER, rural property owner from Kodi ak |sland, specified
that he supports HB 165 and participated in devel oping HB 165.
He explained that he hadn't been renting cabins for several
years, because in Novenber 2006 he was shut down by Kodiak
enforcenent. He was told because the word "usually" was renoved
from the definition of "field" in August 2006 and by renting a
cabin in an area not associated with a city, town, or village,
he was in violation of the definition of “field.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI cited AS 08.54.790, saying there is no
"usual | y" associated with it. He asked where that ties in so
that a person cannot rent out a cabin or house.

MR. METZGER referred to the outfitting portion of the “field”
definition, saying it had some nention of facilities, but he
didn'"t have it in front of him Noting it got confusing and
convoluted, M. Metzger added that he had a state business
license and I|ots of <correspondence from the Division of
Cccupational Licensing saying it was okay to rent the cabins
until the tinme the troopers cane and interpreted it differently.
In response to Senator Wagoner, he said he isn't a transporter
or big game guide, just a property owner. The violation was
because he isn't in an area associated with a city, town, or
vil | age.

CHAI R HUGGE NS apol ogi zed for the bureaucracy.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 18, 2008



MR. METZGER added this was one opportunity for folks who live in
desirable hunting areas to nmake a nodest incone from their
property and he had | ost that opportunity.

JI M PETERSON voi ced support for HB 165, noting that he is one of
the few people who live in Deadman Bay in the summertine and
that he has known Rick Metzger since 1965. He said M. Metzger
was providing a service so that nodest-incone people could rent
a cabin and enjoy the beauty of southern Kodiak I|sland w thout
hiring a guide. It brings joy to people and he saw not hing wong
wi th what he was doi ng.

3:59:21 PM
ROBERT FI THI AN, Executive Director, Al aska Professional Hunters
Association, said his group supports the bill, which fixes a

| oophol e that prevents people like M. Metzger from doing what
is right.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX, in response to Chair Huggins, noted she'd
asked staff to distribute a letter that says the 1996 |[aw
changed the definition of "field" by taking out ™"usually.”
Al though she didn't know whether including "usually" nade a
di fference, she surm sed because of the change in the law the
Department of Public Safety (DPS) enforced it nore stringently.
Prior to that, M. Metzger could rent his cabins, but afterwards
he couldn't because under the regulations this area is outside a
city or a township.

SENATOR CGREEN asked if the bill even covers M. Mtzger, since
| anguage on lines 5-6 it says "with the intent to receive
conpensation, only accommodations to a big gane hunter”

4. 02: 55 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX referred to paragraph (9), which adds new
| anguage, "excluding the provision of acconmodati ons by a person
described in AS 08.54.875". She said this allows soneone |ike
M. Metzger to provide services wthout being considered an
outfitter.

SENATOR CGREEN again read from line 6 that said “the provisions
of this <chapter do not apply to a person providing for
conpensation...only acconmodations to a big gane hunter in the
field as” and asked whether that was in essence a double
negati ve.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he thought 08.54.720(a)(11) said “it
is unlawful for a person without a current registered guide

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 18, 2008



outfitter license to knowingly outfit the big game hunt, provide
outfitting services, and so on.” The definition of "outfit" in
AS 08.54.790(9) neans “to provide for conpensation, or with the
intent to receive conpensation, services, supplies or facilities
to a big gane hunter in the field.”

Renoving "usually" changed the definition of "field" slightly
and he agreed wth Representative LeDoux that it probably didn't
matter. But the troopers interpreted that to nean if soneone is
“in the field”, it is unlawful to do this and he thought the
bill fixed the problem

SENATOR GREEN asked where the bill fixes it for soneone who
isn't hunting.

4:05:16 PM
SENATOR STEVENS replied that situation is already okay.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI concurred, adding this bill only pertains
to big gane hunters.

SENATOR GREEN recal |l ed, however, that the problem arose when a
nonhunter was renting the cabin.

SENATOR STEVENS requested confirmation that a cabin can already
be rented to soneone who isn't hunting, but that the problem
ari ses when the person is a big gane hunter.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX affirnmed that, apologizing if she'd
indicated otherwise. If it was a photographer, there'd be no
problem but it beconmes a crine if sonmeone has a gun with the
i ntention of shooting sonething.

SENATOR GREEN asked if that applies even to a casual hunter, not
a guide, outfitter, and so on.

REPRESENTATI VE LeDOUX said that is the way the law is being
interpreted and enforced now.

SENATOR STEDVMAN noted line 9 speaks to a waiver for state and
federal cabins on state or federal |and. He asked what the
state policy is for renting state cabins to a big gane hunter.

4:06: 26 PM

MS. HANCOCK answered, because nmany tinmes those cabins are rented
to hunters, this l|language was neant to clarify that. She said

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 10- February 18, 2008



that a person shooting rabbits or deer can still be considered a
bi g ganme hunter.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked if the state is renting cabins to
regi stered gui des.

M5. HANCOCK replied she didn't know. She also didn't know if a
mechani sm exists to allow the state to determ ne whet her soneone
renting a state cabin is a |icensed guide.

4:07:20 PM

PAUL JOHNSON, Chair, Big Gane Commercial Services Board, said
this goes back to 1990, when a task force was put together to
define “transporters and guides” and it also defined “field or
cabins” and what would be allowed. At that time it said through
regul ation, not statute, a person had to have a transporter or
big gane license to do those kinds of activities and probably
M. Metzger’'s situation was not considered. It has nothing to do
with things |ike photography; it's just if you re taking people
out for big gane hunting.

He further explained that the |anguage was put back into statute
when the board was sunsetted in 1996; prior to that, it was in
regul ation. Wien the Big Gane Commercial Services Board was
reaut hori zed | ast year that |anguage was left in statute and not
put in regulation, so the board couldn't act on it in dealing
with M. Metzger.

MR. JOHNSON clarified that it wasn't that M. Metzger couldn't
do what he was doing, but he would have had to get a transporter
license, which M. Metzger felt was unnecessary. The board
agreed and asked M. Metzger to work with a board nenber to
assist in changing the statute. The bill is a solid conpromse
on who nust have a transporter |icense and who doesn’'t and
allows M. Metzger to do what he was doi ng.

4:10: 50 PM

MR. JOHNSON said the reason the Departnment of Public Safety got
involved is because when the board was restarted, it wasn't
paying any attention to any of those rules and regul ations from
1996 and when this statute cane through, it cane to the surface.

SENATOR GREEN asked why |eased lands weren’t included in the
bill.

MR. JOHNSON replied that those issues all cane up at the
original 1990 task force when people interested in gane wanted

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 18, 2008



to go in every direction. Therefore the departnent felt that
people with leased land should have a $250-transporter |icense
and make annual reports so everyone would “have a feel” for what
was going on. The board felt that was an intrusion upon private
| and owners and that they shouldn’t be included in the process
and he agreed that it would nuddy the waters.

SENATOR GREEN asked if M. Metzger had been on |eased |and, the
board woul dn’t have had the sane interest.

MR. JOHNSON replied probably; the board was nmainly interested in
how private land owners are treated versus people with |eased
| and. Having | eased | ands included in the provisions wuld cause
problenms, he said, and federal I|ands have always had their
publ i c use cabins.

SENATOR GREEN asked who woul d be the typical owner of the |eased
| and.

MR, JOHNSON replied the state.

SENATOR GREEN asked if it is okay to have a state cabin to | ease
but not a privatel y-owned cabin on state |and.

MR. JOHNSON replied that nost state/federal cabins can't legally
be | eased to people in comrercial services.

4:13: 38 PM
SENATOR GREEN asked if he risks being caught if he does rent one
of those cabi ns.

MR. JOHNSON replied that he would risk being caught because his
permt states specifically that is not allowed.

CHAIR HUGA NS sai d sone people have cabins in preserves around a
park and asked what that |and status is.

4:14:13 PM

MR. JOHNSON replied for instance, that Dry Bay Unit 5 in Yakutat
is on preserved land and the guide there has a guide |icense. If
he wanted to transport off that |and, he would need to get a
transporter license. This unit has |leased cabins on it and the
comercial entities using themneed to be |icensed.

SENATOR MGQUIRE said in 1990 the issue was abuse by the big gane

gui des sonme of whom transported and guided w thout any control
or regulation. The legislature tried to identify tw pathways to

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 18, 2008



oversee that. She asked why, philosophically, the state would
say soneone who is leasing out a cabin on state land that has
been in their famly for 50 years has to have a transporter
license; but seven nles away soneone else who has had a
privately owned cabin for two years would not have to have that
transporter |icense.

4:15:52 PM

MR, JOHNSON replied philosophically it boils down to the fact
that the state | eases with DNR vary from 30, 60, 90 and 180 days
and di scusses whether the cabin is a tent platform If one would
| ook at an advertised activity on big gane in Al aska, they would
be amazed at how nmany people are trying to work around the
state’s present laws. For now, the concern is that people who
have private |ands can proceed wi thout having to go through the
state’ s bureaucracy.

4:16:59 PM

SENATOR WAGONER said he has a | ease on state property along with
a lot of other people and it’s called a duck shack. He thought
they were precluded in the |lease from sonme uses, because it’s
primarily for seasonal use. Some commercial fishernen wanted to
rent it from him but they couldn't. He said the state would
like to get rid of all the cabins on | eased property.

4:17:59 PM
MR. JOHNSON commented that he also has a Forest Service cabin
that has been in the famly for many generations. But it will be

burned down at the point of his son's death. The permt is very
strict and doesn’'t allow himto use it for comrercial purposes
at all.

SENATOR McGUIRE remarked that only 1 percent of all land in
Alaska is in private ownership. She renmenbers going to a duck
shack and it is sad that her child would not have that same
opportunity.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked who this bill applies to.
MR JOHNSON replied it is only for people who are in the
commerci al aspect of big gane. If you are making noney off of

big gane, the state wants to know what you are doi ng.

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked what percentage of big gane hunts
i nvol ves Al askans as opposed to people from outside Al aska.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 13- February 18, 2008



MR. JOHNSON replied that it varies throughout the state. He
understands from M. Metzger that over half of his clients are
residents taking advantage of the permt draw in Kodiak for bear
and deer. But in many areas of the state it is 100 percent non-
residents.

4:20: 54 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN went back to line 9 that deals with cabins on
state and federal |and saying that conmmercial guides can't rent
those — in the Tongass for instance. He asked why the state and
federal issues are in the bill.

MR. JOHNSON answered even though the federal governnent never
followed them until 1990; the state statutes said if sonmeone
rented one, they were supposed to be a transporter. It was never
enforced. He said the only one it was enforced upon was M.
Met zger .

SENATOR STEDVMAN asked if the definition of “state” was broad
enough to include nmunicipalities.

MR. JOHNSON replied yes; municipalities would be covered under
the definition of "field."

4:22:45 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked if Senator Wagoner could take friends to his
duck shack and could they shoot from there even if they don’t
bring the food and dri nk.

SENATOR WAGONER replied yes, but he can't receive noney for it.

CHAIR HUGGA NS asked if a transporter flew a hunter in to M.
Met zger' s | ake-side cabin would this provision apply.

MR. JOHNSTON replied no - if the hunter was flown in and he was
not conpensati ng t he pi | ot (under t he definition of
“conpensation”, which is nore than in-kind).

CHAIR HUGE NS asked what if he paid a transporter to fly him
out .

MR. JOHNSON replied if the transporter used a point-to-point
rate, a transporter |icense would not be needed. But if the
transporter was charging for his know edge of where to take the
hunter, then he would be selling a hunt and then he needs to
have a transporter license. If the cabin belongs to Senator
Wagoner who is not charging for its use, nothing is required

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 18, 2008



They are trying to legitimze a situation like M. Mtzger’s
where he is advertising and getting conpensation for the use of
a cabin.

4:25:50 PM

CHAI R HUGE NS asked what if the assistant guide were there that
got off at the lake and stayed in the cabin to chase a brown
bear with Senator Stevens.

MR, JOHNSON replied if the assistance guide was operating
wi thout a registered guide or master guide, there would be sone
conpl i cati ons.

CHAIR HUGA NS instructed assune all three were there.

MR. JOHNSON responded then the hunter has a contract with the
regi stered guide and he would be good to go. He explained that
M. Metzger was acting legally, but he needed to have a
transporter license. This bill says that now he doesn’'t need to
do that.

4:26: 55 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said it is virtually inpossible to get a
state cabin in Southcentral to recreate and asked if this would
| et big game hunters rent out state cabins.

MR. JOHNSON replied no; DNR doesn’t allow that. Those cabins are
for public use, not comercial use.

4:27: 37 PM

SENATOR WAGONER noved to report HB 165 from commttee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
being no objections and HB 165 was noved out of the Senate
Resources Standing Comm ttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from 4:28:25 PMto 4:30:43 PM

SB 176- ACTI VE GAME MANAGEMENT/ Al RBORNE SHOOTI NG

CHAI R HUGE NS announced the consideration of SB 176

4:30: 45 PM
DOUG LARSON, Director, Division of WIldlife Conservation, Al aska
Department of Fish and Ganme, said he was present for questions
on SB 176.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 18, 2008



KEVI N SAXBY, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of
Law, said he has been assigned to the Board of Gane since 1992.
The bill was produced to keep a commtnent to a nunber of
interested legislators back in the Mirkowski admnistration to
harnoni ze the existing intensive mnagenent |aw and sane-day

airborne law. The two laws are contradictory. It has been
suggested that the bill is an attenpt to circunvent current
litigation, and that is not true. The bill predated the current

l[itigation, but the ongoing |egal challenges since 2003 have
highlighted the weakness in these two statutes, and how
difficult it is for ganme managers to follow both laws. This is
the first conprehensive effort submtted to the legislature from
t he peopl e who have to obey these two statutory mandates.

4:33:11 PM

MR. SAXBY said Sections 1 and 2 don't make any substantive
changes. Sections 3 to 5 are substantive. They rewite the
i ntensi ve managenent law. "W are sinplifying what is currently
a relatively conplex and circuitous process down to its bare
essentials — down to essentially three steps.”

He said the first step is that the board nust identify the ganme
popul ations to be managed intensively and set harvest and
popul ati on objectives. The second is to nmeet those objectives at

all tinmes, and to continue to nmanage it intensively for
abundance. The third step is if the objectives are not being
met, the board nust take positive action, including active

managenent if it becones necessary.

Section 3 sets up the obligation to identify the deer, caribou
and noose populations that are inportant to manage for a high
| evel of human use. It requires the board to set the objectives.

This is already required under existing law, but this bill was
“putting It front and center.” He expects t hat t he
identifications that the board has already made over the years
woul d be ratified if this bill passes.

He said that Section 4 requires the departnent to manage for
abundance, and if objectives are not being net, the board nust
t ake action.

4:35:46 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that Sections (e), (f) and (j) were
del eted and asked if that was changed a couple of years ago.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 16- February 18, 2008



MR. SAXBY replied that the original versions of (e), (f) and (j)
were adapted in 1994/95 and anended in 1998. Wat they are
| ooking at is the 1998 version.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the current |aw tal ks about the Board
of Ganme adopting regulations to provide for intensive nanagenent
prograns and sets out three scientific principles and asked in
what situations those scientific principles wuld not be
utilized.

4:37:11 PM

MR. SAXBY replied that Senator Wel echowski over-sinplified a
little bit. Sections (e) and (f) have two separate triggers
under existing law for intensive managenent; the first trigger
is if the gane popul ation is depleted.

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI said he understood that and asked what is
wong with the current statute that lays out three things the
board has to look at relying on science. Wat's wong with the
current principles that we have?

MR. SAXBY replied that those goals are not scientific principles
— science is only one of the criteria under (f). It also has
whet her it would be detrinmental to subsistence uses.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said you are taking that out.

MR, SAXBY said this mandates intensive nmanagenent unless one of
those three criteria are net. Those aren't standards to be net
to allow intensive managenent; those are the only grounds under
whi ch you can avoid intensive managenent.

4:38: 35 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked why Al aska wouldn’t want a program
that is achievable as in current statute. Wiy get rid of that
provi si on?

MR. SAXBY replied they don't want a check |ist, because every
tinme you create a checklist, ®“you create an opportunity for
peopl e to argue that you haven't junped through proper hoops."

The sinplification |anguage sinply says that the board has to

take whatever action it deens appropriate, and there is no
scientific standard in the existing law, it's just a checklist.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- February 18, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked him for an exanple of when they would
not want feasibly achievable utilizing recognized and prudent
managenent techni ques. G ve an exanpl e.

MR. SAXBY said, "You're not quite reading it right."

SENATOR WELECHOWSKI said he is reading exactly from the
statute.

VR. SAXBY said the statute requires adopting intensive
managenent unless it is not scientifically achievable. It is
very difficult to prove sonething is not scientifically
achi evable; so that obligates nmandatory intensive nanagenent in
virtually every situation. They are actually reducing that
standard, but not the scientific standard. That standard doesn't
say: you may do it if it's scientifically achievable; it says:
you nust do it unless it's not scientifically achievable.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  said he would rephrase the question

Section 3 deletes from the intensive nmanagenent statute the
provision that intensive managenent prograns apply only to
depleted noose and caribou populations or those wth |[|ow
productivity. He asked, “Wiwy would you want to apply intensive
managenent prograns, |ike predator control, to populations that
are not depleted or those wth high productivity?”

4:40: 56 PM
MR. SAXBY replied, "Because if it's a population that's
inmportant to nmnage for high levels of human harvest, it is

al ways inportant to do so.”" A good exanple would be Unit 20a
noose; those noose are not depleted, but they are over their
objectives. But it is necessary to reduce the population in
order to avoid overgrazing the range. Even though it isn't
depleted it is still inportant to managenment it intensively or
actively.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said Section 3 also deletes the provision
that intensive managenent prograns nust be feasibly achievable
utilizing recognized and prudent active nmanagenent techniques
and asked why that is taken out.

4:41:46 PM

MR. SAXBY answered, "We're not renoving any... all we're doing
is sinplifying it down to its bare essentials. And that's only
one of the two triggers." The trigger if it’s depletion is in
Section (e); Section (f) has another trigger which is when the
board acts to significantly reduce the taking of the species -

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 18, 2008



then it is obligated to undertake intensive managenent as well
There is no requirenent in that case for it to be scientifically
achievable. The two are being neshed into a single trigger -
that being if objectives aren't being net, then the board has to
t ake action.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it would be possible under these
changes, that there would be an inprudent active managenent
technique. In other words, current law requires that it be
feasi bly achievable and utilizing recognized and prudent active
managenent techniques. Wuld it be a violation of this proposed
| anguage to use inprudent or unrecognized active nanagenent
t echni ques.

4:43:17 PM
MR. SAXBY replied "I don't think so."

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if they would then be giving the
board unfettered discretion to do inprudent active managenent
t echni ques.

MR. SAXBY replied that he didn't think the board has ever used
its discretion to do that.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated that they were giving the board
unfettered discretion

MR. SAXBY responded that this law gives the board nore
di scretion, but not in the area that Senator W el echowski was
positing. They are getting nore discretion to take a broader
approach to active managenent rather than being forced into it
every tinme they reduce a season or a bag limt. "Now they won't
be forced into it." They will be able to | ook at a broader range
of activities. That is the whole underlying intent here.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said as he reads this, the board wll be
able to do anything it wants, even if it is not scientifically
based.

MR. SAXBY replied that they should understand that the board
already had all that authority to do intensive managenent. The
law was adopted to force the board to do it 1in specific
i nstances because it hadn’'t been active enough. The broad s
authority to conduct intensive managenent in any situation where
it thinks it's warranted. The standards are being changed for
when the board is absolutely obligated to do it.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- February 18, 2008



4:45: 22 PM

SENATOR GREEN said she thought they were overl ooking the broad
authority of the Board of Gane and what it is charged to do
overall. "You would not repeat that you wll act sensibly,
reasonably, prudent, good nmanagenent, good biological material
in each and every chapter. That’s the overriding principle of
what they do.” That is why +the nenbers are reviewed,
i nterviewed, voted upon and then can be renobved.

CHAIR HUGGE NS said that is an excellent point.

4:46: 02 PM

MR. SAXBY added that the board does a nunber of very
controversial things |ike adopt Tier 2 hunts when there is not a
harvestabl e surplus to provide for all subsistence uses. None of
those other statutes have a check list Iike the intensive
managenent |aw. “Apparently the legislature trusts the board to
make very controversial decisions in other situations about
this.”

4:46: 38 PM

SENATOR CREEN asked on page 2, line 20, Section 4, about
popul ations not neeting established objectives and the board
shall adopt regulations. She asked if the adoption is delayed
until after the disaster occurs, so that it can be tailored to
that particular hunt area versus a statewide policy on
identifying low objectives on neeting the guidelines and
popul ation figures.

4:47:19 PM

MR. SAXBY replied each set of regulations will be tailored. The
very first step is to identify the specific populations that
this law requires intensive managenent of. That is only a subset
of noose and cari bou popul ations. The board has only identified
half of the npbose deer and caribou populations in the state as
being inportant to nmanage for high levels of wuse. Do the
objectives are set for each of those populations and if those
are not being net (either over or below), you would be required
to take steps under this bill.

He sai d:

For the first time we're applying the nandate
t hroughout the lifespan or the lifecycle of the herd
in question. In other words, it isn't just when it is
depleted that you act to neet your objectives. It’s
also when it’'s overpopulated that you have to neet

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 20- February 18, 2008



your objectives. If it is inportant to nanage it for
high levels of human use, it is always inportant to
manage it for high levels of human use.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI referred to deleting section (f) which says
“this subsection does not apply if the board determ nes that
i ntensi ve managenment would be ineffective based on scientific
information, inappropriate due to land ownership patterns, or
against the best interests of subsistence uses.” He asked if
they aren't giving the Board of Ganme unfettered discretion to
create an intensive managenent program that is ineffective based
on scientific information, or i nappropriate or agai nst
subsi stence uses.

MR. SAXBY replied that the board is being given the discretion
to find that it isn't appropriate for nore than those three
listed reasons. He rem nded them that the intensive nanagenent
law requires intensive managenent unless one of those three
conditions is net. By taking those conditions out, the board is
required to do sonething, but it isn't necessarily required to
for exanple, adopt a wolf control programunless it can find one
of those three conditions is net. Instead it has nore discretion
to decide when or what action is appropriate. It isn't limted
to only three reasons to avoi d intensive nanagenent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the constitution requires that
wildlife be managed on the sustained yield principle. The
|l egislature is the body that has the constitutional obligation
to oversee the managenment of Alaska's wildlife. This turns all
of that responsibility over to a board saying go ahead and do
what you want. It doesn’'t have to be based on science, or the
best interest of subsistence wuses. It can be based on
i nappropriate use of |and ownership patterns. Wat concerned him
is that it is a drastic change to give the board unfettered
di scretion and going away from scientific principles. There is
no accountability. He asked if any other board has that sane
di scretion.

4:51: 01 PM

MR. SAXBY replied that the board already has the discretion he
is talking about. The intensive nanagenent |aw does not limt
the board’ s ability to conduct intensive nmanagenent. It only
limts the occasions when it is required to do intensive
managenent . The board has the authority under gener al

authorities to adopt laws that include predator control, for
exanple (before Sections (e),(f), (g) and (j). The Board of
Fi sheries has the sane broad authority.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- February 18, 2008



MR. SAXBY said the intensive managenent law is not a grant of

authority and this bill isn't a grant of authority either. That
authority exists elsewhere in statutes. The underlying
assunption of this bill is that the legislature still intends to

require the board in certain circunstances to adopt intensive
managenment prograns. That being the case, they are trying to
nmeet that requirenent and nake it a nore defensible requirenent.
“This is not an additional grant of authority.”

MR. SAXBY said Section 5 reduces the definitions to just two. It
elimnates the problematic ones. There was probl emati c
"harvest abl e surplus” and "sustained yield" definitions. Both of
which were contradictory with current governing principle of
game management or with existing case law. The term "intensive
managenent” is being changed to "active nanagenent"”, because
active managenent is generally viewed by gane mnanagers as a
broader term enconpassing nore than predator control or habitat
mani pul ati on. The current definition has “intensive managenent”
defined as active managenent anyway, so the mddle termis just
bei ng cut out.

They are retaining the definition of "providing for a high |evel
of human harvest,"” because that is the core of the nmandate.
Sections 6 and 7 are just conform ng changes, but Sections 8 -10
are the sane-day airborne |aw.

4:54: 05 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if under Section 4 the board will be
required to make witten findings justifying its decisions.

MR. SAXBY answered when the board adopts a predator control
i npl ementation plan, it adopts witten findings; but if it sets
obj ectives under Section 3, those go into regulations, so they
are in witing, too. Wen the board identifies popul ations those
go into regulations, so those are in witing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if those determ nations in Sections 3
and 4 would be required to be based findings nust be based on
Sci ence.

MR. SAXBY replied that it wll be required to base those on the
total record before it, just like all other decisions. Every
time a proposal cones before the board, the departnent presents
the best available data and the best available science that it
has. Menbers of the public testify and opposition groups
testify. The board is required to consider all of that

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- February 18, 2008



information under the Admnistrative Procedures Act and then
make a reasoned decision based on all of that information. That
requi renent won’t change.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if they wll be required to use
sci ence.

4:55: 34 PM
M. Saxby said they will be required to use whatever information
conmes to them They need to use all.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that Section 5 defines providing for
high level of human harvest by hunter demand and asked if that
i ncl udes hunter demand from outside hunters or just residents or
bot h.

MR. SAXBY replied that it includes all hunter demand as is
requi red under existing | aw.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said if you get 12,000 requests for the
Nel china herd which is obviously nore demand than supply, does
that mean you elimnate all the predators.

MR. SAXBY answered no, because of carrying capacity and a great
many other factors matter as well the board has to set both
popul ati on and harvest objectives. The definition just lists the
factors that the board needs to consider when doing that. It
doesn't nean that hunter demand is the only controlling factor
Bi ol ogi cal capabilities of the herd and habitat and historic
hunter demand are inportant, too.

4:56: 53 PM

MR. SAXBY said Section 8 takes the existing sane-day airborne
law and for the first tinme neshes it wth the intensive
managenent law. As historically worded, they have been at cross
purposes. It adds brown bears to the class of protected aninals.
Currently there is no prohibition against hunting brown bears
the sane day as airborne. They have been added to that
prohi bition because they are slow breeders and deserving of that
protection. Wlverines and brown bears are added into the
exceptions if it is necessary.

MR. SAXBY explained, "I guess our thinking has been that the
essence of the same-day airborne |aw has always been a general
prohibition on same-day airborne hunting, coupled wth an
exception for predator control when necessary." The standards
have varied over the years. The exception for when it 1is

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 23- February 18, 2008



necessary to mesh with the intensive nanagenent law is being
changed. So if the board determnes that its objectives aren't
being net and active nmanagenent is necessary, it may then adopt
a predator control program The other exception is if it is
conducive to the health of a predator population, for instance,
the lice infestations in noose.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he said this law will protect
brown bears.

MR. SAXBY replied yes, for the first tine.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if a person can aerial shoot brown
bears now.

MR. SAXBY answered no, because there is a regulation that
forbids it, but it is not in statute.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said you can't aerial -shoot brown bears now
and asked if you could under the proposal.

MR. SAXBY replied only in the case of a predator control
progr am

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said let's be realistic with the public.

You are not protecting brown bears with this. You're
putting it in statute that they are protected and then
in another section you're saying you can go out and
aerial shoot them Let's be up front with the public
about what we’'re doing here.

5:00: 06 PM
MR. SAXBY differed saying there is no statutory prohibition
agai nst taking brown bears fromthe air for any reason.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said there are regulations against it, and
he was attenpting to override those with a statute by allow ng
them to be shot in another section. "That's not protecting brown
bears, M. Saxby."

MR. SAXBY responded that regulation currently allows brown bears
to be taken fromthe area in a predator control program So, the
general prohibition is in regulation as well as the exception.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked himto continue with his testinony.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 18, 2008



MR. SAXBY stated that Section 9 adds another exception and
explained that the general prohibition doesn't apply to a
departnent enpl oyee in taking wolves, wolverines or brown bears.
It includes taking nuisance wldlife and to protect public
safety. A public enployee flying out to kill an animl would be
illegal. Section 10 makes it <clear that dart guns are not
i ncl uded. The renmi ning sections are transition dates.

5:01: 54 PM

WADE W LLIS, representing hinself, said he is amazed that the
Departnment of Law thinks this wll help the Board of Gane
institute predator control prograns. “That’s just a stunning

tw st and an obvious snoke screen.” Meshing regulations into a
single trigger reduces gane nanagenent to the opinions of the
menbers of the Board of Ganme; they would need science or proof
to verify predator control is needed.

The departnent, for the first tinme, will be allowed to kill
bears for the first tine. Arial shooting of bears has never been
in the law or available to the Board of Gane. This issue is the
nost highly contentious issue in Al aska where it has been voted
on three tines. He said 57,000 people signed the |ast
initiative. Further he said, the Board of Ganme represents 15
percent of Al aska residents, 85 percent of which do not hunt
Not one representative on the Board of Gane is from that 85
percent that doesn't hunt.

MR. WLLIS accused, “You are giving unfettered access to this
contentious issue to a special interest group, the hunters.) You
cannot protect the wildlife of this state or nmanage it in that
way. This bill is not a sinplification of the regulations, but
an attenpt to renove all the essential elenents of the public,
the courts and scientific comunity’'s ability to require that
i ntensi ve nmanagenent techniques, especially aerial predator
control are carefully supported by scientific data and the
publi c.

5:05: 06 PM

VI C VANBALLENBERGHE, W/ dlife Biologist, Anchorage, said he is a
former three-term Board of Gane nenber and that he strongly
di sagreed with the notion that SB 176 is an inprovenent to
current intensive nanagenent and the sane-day air-borne hunting
statutes. The guidelines that would be deleted by this bill were
placed in statute by previous legislators after a good deal of
input from biologists, DO, and interested parties. This bill
deletes those in one fell swoop. Those guidelines have been
characterized as a checklist to guide the board in adopting
i nt ensi ve managenent prograns.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 25- February 18, 2008



He suggested if they are going to amend existing statute, the
state should add to the checklist, not delete it or subtract
from it. It is not as if the board has been restrained in
adopting intensive managenent prograns by those guidelines. He
said the state already has five active prograns to reduce bears
and wol ves to increase prey.

MR. VANBALLENBERGHE said the nost objectionable thing he finds
is SB 176 is the provision in Section 8 that nodifies the
ai rborne shooting act such that the board would no |onger need
information from the Al aska Departrment of Fish and Gane. It is
i nportant | anguage and should be restored. He added, "O course
we would want to docunent that reducing predation would solve
the problem™

5:08: 29 PM

ANDREA VEACH, representing herself, said Al askans have twce
voted in 1996 and 2000 agai nst aerial shooting of wolves by the
public. The voters have been disregarded by the |egislature and
the board. Native subsistence hunters did not traditionally
depend on aerial elimnation of their conpetition to gain an
advant age and she asked why they think that is necessary now |f
anyt hing has changed, it’s that there are nore hunters expecting
nore than the | and can provide.

M5. VEACH said historically the predator npst dangerous to the
environment in the balance of nature is man, and we need to be

managed. The human population is now 6.5 billion; wolves and
bears can be counted in the thousands. Wwere will the wolves go
when the human population reaches 9.3 billion, she asked and

said “This is our challenge and that should be our priority.”

Most of the world has decimated their wildlife and it is now
time to accommodate it. The Board of Gane sees the animals as
sonething to kill and consune and the state needs a Board of
Wlildlife to mtigate that single narrow view In Denali, seeing
human visitors appreciating this smallest opportunity to see
ani mal s.

5:11: 33 PM
M5. VEACH concluded that SB 176 could be called appeasing
out si de hunters.

5:12: 08 PM

PAUL JOSLIN, retired WIdlife Biologist, Anchorage, said he
strongly opposes SB 176, because it would nake |egal the sane-

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 26- February 18, 2008



day shooting of wolves, bears, and wol verines on a whim Looking
at ADF&G information would no |onger be required and depart nment
enpl oyees wouldn’'t be able to adhere to a nanagenent plan.
Ai rborne shooting is highly controversial, so comobn sense woul d
be to make sure you have a solid case before you do it. This
bill wll do the opposite. It will allow the Board of Gane to
engage in predator control with only flinsy justification, and
the key words are "conducive to achieving the objectives.”
Reasonabl e certainty is not needed, just a nmere hunch.

VAL GLOOSCHECNKO, Biol ogist, federal agency, said she is on her
own tine and backs up previous testinmony in opposition to SB
176. The changes proposed are not housekeeping itens; they are
drastic. It would open the door to increase killing wolves,
wol verines and bears statewide w thout necessity or science.
This is outside the pale of any wildlife nmanagenment principles.

5:15:48 PM

M5. GLOOSCHECNKO said the WIldlife Society net recent and had
several presentations unaninously against this. She concluded
that this bill is not scientifically defensible. WIldlife
bel ongs to all Al askans.

JERRY McCUTCHEON said he has watched this “stuff” for 60 years.
Gone are the days of bands of sheep and herds of caribou roam ng
the foothills of M. MKinley - sheep so nunerous and thick they
would not nove out of the way of oncomng dog teanms of the
trappers and mners. Sheep in front of the dogs would junp up on
t he backs of other sheep and fill back in as the dogs passed

lmagine a dog team totally surrounded by sheep. It was
spect acul ar, but he never got to see it. No one else wll.

Every tinme he nmet up with Carl Logsfeld, who was a dog team
driver and later a mner, in a bar, he would insist on telling
himthe trail on which the dog races were held was not the rea

Iditarod. The real one went through MKinley Park. The Park
Service took man out of the hunting and trapping equation and
wol ves slowy destroyed those great bands of sheep and herds of
caribou to the point that there is little or nothing left. The
wol ves then resorted to killing and eating each other or |eft
the park to go where there was still gane. Because the state
killed wolves from airplanes, there were nore wolves and nore
game when the wolves were aerially hunted. He is a firm believer
in aerial wolf hunting and “none of this |and-and-shoot crap.”

MR. MCUTCHEON said, “It’s not about fair chase; it’s about
predator control. No wolf hunting or bear hunting by ADF&G Just

SENATE RES COW TTEE -27- February 18, 2008



raise the bounty until the state has an active comunity of
aerial hunters.”

5:19:21 PM

JOHN TOPPENBERG, Alaska WIldlife Alliance, Soldotna, said he
wanted to address one aspect of this bill, the application of
any requirenent that biological science be a part of the
deci si on-maki ng  process. He disagreed wth M. Saxby’ s
interpretation and characterizations saying the Board of Gane
often gives mniml deference to available science. It has

i npl emented prograns that have caused nminstream scientists
serious concern. The research data conpiled by ADF&G is
available to any interested scientist. Scientific organizations
opposed to the existing progranms include the National Research
Council and the Anmerican Society of Mammal ogists; others
scientists are against these extrene prograns as well.

MR. TOPPENBERG said this bill would not only elimnate the need
to consider the inadequate scientific standards the board nust
now give passing consideration to, but it would also elimnate
any requirenment that predators are the cause of the decline or
| ow prey nunbers. This regressive |egislation should be opposed
by anyone supporting nobderate scientific wldlife nanagenent
concepts and that recognize that healthy populations of both
predator and prey are necessary for healthy ecosystens.

5:20: 56 PM

JCEL BENNETT, fornmer Board of Gane nenber for over 12 years,
Juneau, said he has been an active l|licensed hunter for the 39
years he has lived in Alaska. He was the organizer and sponsor
of each of the initiatives in 1996 and 2000 and he is presently
co-sponsoring the third ballot initiative on the sanme subject
t hat has been certified for a vote next August.

MR. BENNETT said he wanted to focus on what he considers the
guts of the bill in Section 8 It makes |arge scal e changes and
the current airborne hunting laws the state has been operating
with. He was very surprised that M. Saxby didn't describe what
was being deleted fromthat statute, and that is the whole key.
He said the plan has to be based on information provided by the
ADF&G and has to tie in a causal way predation either by wol ves
or bears as an inportant reason the objectives aren’t achieved.
I f they don’t know that wolves or bears are causing the problem
why would they be shooting then? Maybe habitat is the problem
not bears or wol ves.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 28- February 18, 2008



Hs initiative has 57,000 signatures and the common thread is
that the board needs sonme kind of minimal standard so that the
departnment bases its predation control, especially through
ai rborne nethods, on bona-fide serious biological problens. The
initiative uses the sane | anguage that passed in 1996 by al nost
60 percent of Alaskans. It also says it has to be based on
adequate scientific data, a key elenent. It also says it has to
be conducted by departnent personnel, because that is the nost
responsi bl e hunmane and efficient way to do these prograns. They
also say it should be confined to the smallest geographic area
as possible. “We think that’s what the public really would
support and go along with in terns of predator control.”

MR. BENNETT said this bill actually takes that standard and
nodi fies to the point that there is no standard at all.

5:24:48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI directed his question to the Departnent of
law and asked if it’s the admnistration perspective that if
Section 8 or any part of this bill passes that it will have an
i npact on the ballot initiate.

MR. SAXBY replied the adm nistration wants this bill to stand or
fall on its own nerit whether it inpacts the ballot initiative
or not.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked if the governor supports these changes.
MR. LARSON replied yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the constitutional provision on
sustained yield applies to predators.

MR. LARSON answered yes.

5:26:35 PM

SENATOR WAGONER sai d he has been told that black bears kill nore
new born noose calves on the Kenai Peninsula than any other
predator and the second highest predators are feral dogs. He
didn't think the bill went far enough in listing the predators
that are really to blame for the decrease in the npose
popul ati on.

MR. LARSON responded the current law as well as the proposa

allows black bears to fall within those species that could be
managed by predator control activities.

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 29- February 18, 2008



5:27:54 PM
MR. LARSON also noted that the effective date of July 2007
shoul d say July 2008.

CHAIR HUGE NS announced conceptual Anendnent 1 that corrected
the effective date on page 5, |line 25. There were no objections
and it so ordered.

SENATOR STEDVAN noved to report CSSB 176(RES) from conmttee
with individual recomendations and attached fiscal note(s).
There being no objection, CSSB 176(RES) was noved out of the
Senat e Resources Standing Comm ttee.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he wanted to hear nore about renoving
the scientific aspects of this issue in the next commttee.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Huggi ns adjourned the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee
meeting at 5:30:09 PM

SENATE RES COWM TTEE - 30- February 18, 2008



